# MINUTES TEA

A.F.N

# SECOND CONFERENCE

# FREE BAPTISTS

## NOVA SCOTIA.

HELD AT KEMPTVILLE, YARMOUTH COUNTY,

Sept. 12th, 18th and 14th, 1867.

# WITH AN APPENDIX,

CONTAINING

TERASURER'S ACCOUNT, CONSTITUTION AND MINUTES OF FOREIGN MISSION SOCIETY, AND CONSTITUTION OF EDUCATION SOCIETY.

> SAINT JOHN, N. B. PRINTED BY BARNES AND COMPANY, FRINCE WILLIAM STREET. 1967.

SETTIN I lide Jose 1000 . base liber -13 The Free B Church in Ke 1.0 3013 o'clock, A. M. Meeting cal Prayer by I Resolved, T year. Most of the The Yarmo represented. The Harmon n od ene Rev. C. O. LIBBY, f Rev. A. H. MORRE Rev. G. A. HARTLI Rev. W. M. KNOL Conten-Little (1997) I Land La Charles Revs. Constitution Resulved, The A STATISTICS ETIW/ Resolved, The Hampleton, be Revolved, The cept voting. Resolved, The Missions. and so saturate to a formation of statement entitletter Resolved, The Peters, be the C Resolved, Tha Educati Resolved, The Morrell, be the ( FAINT JOILS, T. Resolved, The ATE 2 TEA COLLAN TE CATENIT' Committee to rep Resolved, That E. Reud, be a Co TART

# MINUTES The report of Complition on Education was called in mail road

Inte Joursell Magnet, Howell, Joseph Meleval, and That alla to the Committee to algori on Baldach Schoole at it Madeio C liden anteolity on anoth Anteolo

# KEMPTVILLE, September 12, 1867.

Participation O. David

lord M. W. wall of miner

The Free Baptist Conference of Nova Scotia convened with the Church in Kemptville, according to previous appointment, at ten

Meeting called to order by the Standing Clerk. Prayer by Rev. D. Oram

Resolved, That Roy, E. G. Eaton be Moderator for the present year. Most of the Elders with many of the Deacons were present.

The Yarmouth and Shelburne Quarterly Meeting was well represented. The Harmony Quarterly Meeting was not represented.

# Oorresponding Delegates present.

Rev. C. O. LIBBY, from the Maine Western Yearly Meeting of F. W. Baptist, U.S. Rev. A. H. Moanzuz, from Maine Central Yearly Meeting of F. W. B., U.S. Rev. G. A. Hakrart and Rev. W. M. KNOLLIN, From the General Conference of F. O. Baptist of N. B.

### Visiting Brethren

Reva. J. E. Reud, O. Donnett, and Bro. Joseph McLeod. Brethren B. J. Underham, Wm. Peters, and D. W. Clark.

Constitution and Bye Laws were read. Readled, That we raise the Prudential Committee by nomination. Recoved, That Brethren T. H. Crowell, Asa McGray, and Henry Hampleton, be the above Committee.

Recoived, That all the Corresponding and Visiting Brethren have seats with us, and enjoy all the privileges of Conference ex-

Resolved, That a Committee of three be appointed, to report on Missions.

Resolved, That Boys. W. C. Weston, T. Brown, and Brother W. Peters, be the Committee.

Resolved, That a Committee of three be appointed, to report on Educati

Resolved, The Revs. J. I. Porter, G. A. Hartley, and A. H. Morrell, be the Committee.

Resolved, That D. Oram, C. O. Libby, and S. K. West, be a Committee to report on Temperance. Resolved, That Brother B. Minard, Reva. W. M. Knollin, and J.

E. Reud, be a Committee to report on the Sabbath. Acceletation

16671

Resolved, That Brethren T. H. Crowell, Joseph McLeod, and D. W. Clark, be a Committee to report on Sabbath Schools. Resolved. That we adjourn until 2 o'clock, P. M. Prayer by Rev. C. O. Libby.

### AFTERNOON, 2 o'clock.

### Prayer by Rev. W. M. Knollin.

The report of Committee on Education was called for and read. Resolved, That the report be received.

After due consideration, the report was adopted, as follows :

After due consideration, the report was another that Rmonr.—In view of the wants of the Denomination, your Committee think the time has some when the Free Baptist of Nors South should ergainse an Education Society: one of the leading objects of which shall be to raise funds for the assistance of young men who intend devoting themselves to the work of the ministry, and to direct them whore to study; and to counsel in any other matters that may aid them. We also recommend that's Committee be spoin-matters that conference, to form a Constitution for the government of the Society. J. I. PORTER, Chairman. C. HARTLEY, Secu. Com-

G. A. HARTLEY, Sec'y. Com.

#### Resolved. That the above report be adopted.

Resolved, That Elders Knowles, Morrell, Hartley, Porter, and Deacon Asa McGrav, Be a Committee to form a Constitution for the government of the Education Society.

Resolved, That the report of Committee on Missions be received r. C.O. Lunny, Same the Maine Wester, and adopted.

and adopted. Record, — The Committee appointed to report on Missions, in making their sport would notice, that we find a Home Mission Society formed in connection with the Quarterly meeting, and have great pleasure in stating that match good to being accomplianed by these Societies, and would recommend our people to to all they can to aid the Societies with funds to anicconstitut carry on the work. Tour Committee find as yet there has been no Foreign Missionary Society or panised, and the amount of funds raised amalit, and are of opinion that they im-sis come when this Conference should take anticed astion in the Foreign Missionary mode, — Your Committee are avare that in New Brunwick the Free Christian being these considerations, your Committee would recommend the formed by the W. R. and F. O. Baptise in this Province, that link is amaently acressed : when a these considerations, your Committee would recommend the form-to of a Foreign Missionary Society ; and would recommend the form-multe meeting, to bring the matter fully before the pools. W. PETERS, Socy Com. W. PETERS, Socy Com.

Resolved, That a Committee of three be appointed to fran 10 B Constitution for the Foreign Missionary Society. Rev. C. O. Libby, be the Committee.

solved, That there be a Council of five appointed to consider the ordination of Brother T. H. Crowell tilmonic dit ad Ilerial Resolved, That Beva E. G. Baton, /T. Brown, C. Knowles, W. C. Weston, and E. Sullivan, be the Committee. as Mend, be a Committee to report on the Sabasia. Acols'o C ta

Prayer by Resolved. Resolved, held with the as per Const The report Missionary S Resolved, Resolved. " reign Mission Resolved, 7 minate Off Resolved, Committee. Repolved, 7 Prayer by

Met accord Prayer by This was on Rev. E. G. Yearly Meetin and satisfactor

After speaking e P. W. d P. their con in our proceeding with th Resolved .

Rev. J. I. P. wick General was read, and

DEAR HAR od I was permit arty a nortal sho lid not NS CO. H.N. LO d who lab d working feel to j There were ab

8 dela ting friends ho went as a visit

o'clock.

and read.

lows:

nittee think ize an or o raise fun the work of in any other e be appoin-the Society. man. 1897

ec'y. Com.

orter, and itation for

#### e received 12.17.000

naking the t mach y Some eign Mission forted by the ntly severed : Chairma y. Cominate

to frame a ed protati

to consider

d .Heriob powles. W. Cumpittee

w morning, d hirall is

Prayer by Rev. F. Brown. Resolved, That Bro. James Robbins be Moderstor pro. tem. Resolved, That the pert Annual Meeting of this Conference be held with the Church on Cape Island, at the Central Meeting House, as per Constitution. (Second Thursday in September, 1868).

The report of Committee to prepare Constitution for Foreign Missionary Society was read. Resolved. That the report be received.

Resolved, That the report be adopted. (See Constitution \* Fo-reign Missionary Society," Appendix.) Resolved, That there be a Committee of three appointed to nor-mirate Officers for the Foreign Missionary Society. Resolved, That D. Oram, N. McGray, and G. W. Perry, be the

Revolved, That we adjourn until 2 o'clock, r. x.

Prayer by Elder Libby, underil od a sinw at ere all' their Caulines

Met according to adjournment at 2 e'clock; 7, 2. Prayer by Elder Charles Knowles. This was one reporting meeting. Rev. E. G. Eston, the Corresponding Delegate to the Kennebee Yearly Meeting, made his report verbally, which was interesting After speaking of

and satisfactory. After speaking of his warm reception by that body, he made a statement of the minutes in which they exected and disposed of the subject of the union is the r. W. and F. O. Baydias of this Province, which he subject to the side of the transformer is a state of the structure, which he subject is then be their consideration. He seld that hey hearily and unanihously seating and pondence with their might be continued. *Rev. J. T. Portor, the Corresponding delegate to the New Bruns-*wick General Conference, was called upon. for his report, which was read, and was as 6 follows.term

was read, and was as follows.:mmonover, that is the proof Dask Baremines-I am hippy to be able to say that is the proof of I was parmitted to visit our Bretheni in their Annual Confessor South Branch Overnooto, Sanbary Control, to July I and I four delayan a hearty welcome. It was thereing to most those Brethen again, with we had before Gornad an any abination and once more grasp the friend on this morel above. But our heart were and with the thought that a hearty welcome. By the those barries and we are the second on this morel above. But our heart were and which the proof that more the Sathers without we next, but does the second at among the Sathers without we next, but does the second large to and who laboured no emerging to the among first assesses and who income the second proof the minon in which we registe to do and who income the second by the second second large the and who income the second second by the second second large the lard working lane editor of the Sathers with the second large the hard working lane address of the Sathers and the second second second and who income the second second second second second second second and who income the second second second second second second and who income the second second second second second second and who income the second second second second second second and the second second second second second second second and the second second second second second second second at the labout the second second second second second second at the labout the second second second second second second at the labout the second second second second second second at the labout the second second second second second second at the labout the second second second second second second at the labout the second second second second second second second at the labout the second seco

conditioned. There were about thirty ordained Ministery present and about fittee that, boaldes delegates from the saveral districts, as well as a good a sling friends. We were also giad to meet Rev. E follows of the Con who went at a visitor.

The Brethren In New Branswick do not hold Quarterly Meetings as with us, but their denominational field is divided into seven Districts, which hold each a yeafly meeting; and these Districts are represented at the Annual Conference. Notwithstanding the great loss from the Ministerial ranks, and of thelipbour

Notwithstanding the greet loss from the Ministerial raiks, and of the labour of two of their Ministers with us the greater part of last year, it was a year of encounging prosperity. The several Societies in connection with the Conference appear to be in a healthy condition. Their Home Mission Society is doing a large work, with rapidly increasing funds. Notwithstanding the comparatively little done in this Province (concerning which we have unfeigned regret), their Foreign Mission Society has been able to meet all demands upon it. These Societies hold public meetings at the time of General Conference. Those mètings were enhusiastic and successful, and large sums were mised. They have an educational Society but on account of the death and Absence of some of the members of the Board, were unable to hold a public meeting to forward this desirable object; but the members of the Board present expressed themselves as resolved to convene at another time, and take immediate action.

B ome of the most important business of the Bession was the framing of a scheme upon the circuit system, to be recommended to the churches for their spptoval upon which it will be carried into effect at the peak Annual Conference. Also, the formation of a Society for the wells of peedy Ministers and their families. The way in which the Brethren took hold in this Boelety affords gradifying vidence of its being a greet blessing to the denomination.

Our brethren in New Brunswick seemed highly pleased with the union of the two bodies which compose this Conference.

Upon the request of your delegate, Brethren Hartley and Knollin were appointed Corresponding Delegates to this Conference, whom we are happy to see with us. We recommend that the correspondence be continued.

Resolved, That the above report be received.

The Rev. C. O. Libby, of the Maine Western Yearly Meeting of the Free Will Baptist of the United States having laid an official paper on the table, stating that he had been appointed by that body to represent them in our Conference, was now called upon.

He gave a very interesting account of the condition and prospects, not only of the Yearly Meeting which he represented, but of the Free Will Baptist Gemeral Conference, with which said Yearly Meeting stands connected. It was indeed gratifying and stimulating to hear of the success with which they are carrying forward the various benevolant objects of the day. They have in conmection with the General Conference about 30 yearly meetings, 145 quarterly meetings, 1,360 churches, 66,260 communicants, 155 licensed preachers, and (a)075 ordianted preachers. They have three colleges, one theological school, and about eight seminaries and academies. They have also a printing establishment, which publishes the Morning Size (the end of the demonimition), and various other publications, all of which are productive of great interest to the denomination. The Procease, is denominational paper, recently started in the West, though it was thought that it would militate somewhat segment thing which were stimulating, encouraging and instructive to as as a young demonination, and which we hope will be a lasting benefit to us. His report was in every way interesting and satisfactory. In behalf of the Maine Western Tearly Meeting, he requested that correspondence between them might be constined.

Rev. A. H. Morrell, Corresponding Delegate from the Maine Central Yearly Meeting of F. W. Baptist of United States, being called apon, said :--

That as Brother Libby, the representative of the Maine Western Yearly Meeting, had gone over the whole denominational ground in so interesting a manner, it woo in connection : Conference. F Meeting to Mai change their na yearly meeting: Eastern. He so ponding Delega manner of the a by the Barringe the Free Christ which she had f and prayed that Maine Central Y

Bro. Morrell a about to labor as the sympathy an while away from trodden fellow or

Rev. Q. A. Ha General Conferen official paper, cer M. Knollin as or reference to their not go over that ciettes, which ar Rev. J. L. Phillip

Bro. Hartley di they were doing it to erect an institueducation, so that that purpose. If loss from their minand MoLeod. He that we had effects dially on the same comfort, and stimuhalf of the body, b Their number of a 86 ; licentiates, 14

Rev. W. M. Kn made some very's

The reports fi There was no re

Rev. Charles Kn limits of this Quart condition, as far as very abundantly in They have been do of New Brunswick, success ander God. of the Quarterly Me

Bro. Samuel Dolli short statement of t as with us. h hold each Conference. of the labour ras a year of the Conferiety is doing e comparamed regret), on it. These nce. Those ised. They noe of some to forward ressed themaction

framing of a bes for their nual Conferlinisters and ciety affords

union of the

llin were aphappy to see

Meeting of an official that body m.

cts, not only Baptist Geted. It was ch they are have in con-45 quarterly eachers, and ical school. gical school, (nomination) t interest to ly started in against the said many as a young His report dne We m might be

be Maine tes, being

tern Yearly interesting a

manner, it would only be necessary for him to speak of some things of interest in connection with the Yearly Meeting which he represented, and with us as a Conference. He said that they had changed their name from Kennebee Yearly Conterence. The said that they had compete their name from Arennetter I ways Mosting to Maine Contral, and had requested the Ponobseot Yearly Meeting to change their name to Maine Eastern; is ad then they will have the names of their yearly meetings in Maine to run thus-Maine Western, Maine Central, Mahe Eastern. He mid that they were pleased to great Rev. E. J. Eaton, our Corresponding Delegate, at their last annual gathering. He spoke in a very interesting manner of the action of that body with reference to the request which was made manner or the action of fanal body with reference to the request which was made by the Barrington Quarterly Meeting for their dismission, in order to units with the Free Christian Baptiss, in forming our present Conference. He said that they loved their *little daughter*, who lived so far from home, away down in Nora Scotias, and felt sorry to part with her, but were willing in view of the alliance Socia, and feet sorry to part with net, our were writing in view or the annance which ash and formed, hoping that it night prove one of happiness and profit, and prayed that 60d might bless her in her new relationship. Is behalf of the Maine Central Yearly Meeting, he wished us great prosperity, and desired that we might continue mutual christian correspondence.

Bro. Morrell also referred to the Freedmen's Mission cause, in which he was about to labor as a missionary, in a very affecting and able manner, and asked the sympathy and prayers of this Conference in their behalf, and in his behalf while away from friends and home, laboring for the elevation of those down-

trodden follow creatures. Hew. G. A. Hartley, Corresponding delegate from the Free Christian Bapdiat General Conference of New Brunswick, being called upon, laid on the table an official paper, certifying the appointment by that body of himself and Bey. W. M. Knollin as codelegates. Our Corresponding delegate having spoken with reference to their present and anticipated system of working, Bro. Hartley did not go over that ground. He referred to their Home and Foreign Mission So-cicities, which are in very successful operation. They are laboring to sustain Bev. J. L. Phillips and wife, missionaries in India. Bro. Bartley did not overlook the Educational question, but spoke of what they were doing in their Province, and to ad our young men in obtaining an education, so that they would not be obliged to go so far from their homes for that purpose. He made some yery affecting remarks with reference to their loss from their ministerial ranks by the dash of their and our Unstainen Bartley and McLeod. He said that it was a source of gratification to them. Is shown

loss from their ministerial ranks by the death of their and our Breathren Harts and Moleod. He said that it was a source of gratification to them to know that we had effected our denominational minor, and congretulated us most cor-dially on the same. He said many things which were calculated to interest, comfort, and stimulate us to renewed effort in the cause of Christ, and in be-half of the body be represented asked for a continuation of correspondence. Their number of churches is 100; communicants, 7,000; ordained ministers, 36; licentiates, 14; number baptised during year, 565. Rev. W. K. Knellin, co-delegate from the New Brunswick Conference; also made some very appropriate and interesting remarks.

The reports from the Quarterly Meetings were than called for. There was no report from the Harmony Quarterly Meeting,

Rev. Charles Knowles, who has been laboring for the last year wikin the limits of his fourierly Mosting, being present, made a brief statement of its condition, as far as he was acquainted with it. God has disened his labors very abundantly in the ingathering of sonis. He has organized one new church. They have been doing scoreshing in the Home Mission work. Rev. A.B. Marsh, of New Brunswick, labored as their Home Missionary for a while, while, while, gove success make fold. It has been a year of prosperity with the western section of the Quarterly Meeting. Bro. Samuel Dolliver was present from the Eastern section, who also gave a

of the servery meeting. Bro. Samuel Dolliver was present from the Eastern section, who also short statement of things there, which was not so encouraging as we could

ne of the churches have had regular preaching a part of the time ; others, only occasional preaching, and all have been destitute for some time of pastorai aid.

We may observe here that as we have no formal report from the Harmony Quarterly meeting, and consequently no statistics from the churches connected therewith, and also as we have not the correct statistics from some of the churches of the Yarmouth and Shelburne Quarterly Meeting, we do not publish a statistical table of Conference this year.

The report from the Yarmouth and Shelburne Quarterly Meeting was read by the Clerk, which was as follows :

The Yarmouth and Shelburne Free Baptist Quarterly Meeting to the Free Bap-tist Conference of Nova Scotia, assembled at Kemptville, Yarmouth County sendeth Christian salutation :

#### DEAR BRETHREN-

In reporting to you, we feel that we have great reason to praise Almighty God, the Father of all mercies. One year ago you did not exist as you do to God, the Father of all mercies. One year ago you did not exist as you do to-day. It was only a few months ago, when you assembled at Barringtow, the representatives of two distinct denominations, professing the same faith and practice, but who for many years had been isolated in labor and sympathy. And while we remember that then and there you manifested your willingness and desire to throw away all existing difficulties, hall each other as brethren, and to units in labor and sympathy for the advancement of the cause of Christ, and the units in labor and sympathy for the advancement of the Charles (Nova Scotis," by organizing yourselves into the "Free Baptist Conference of Nova Scotia," thereby effecting that which so many desired, and for which so reany had la-

thereby effecting that which so many desired, and for which so many had la-bored and prayed, we feel that it is cause for gratitude to God. We are glad that it was our privilege to be co-instruments under God in bringing about such a great and good work, and that we now sustain such re-sistions to you as will alford us the privilege of becoming workers together with you in carrying out that for which it was designed—to cultivate unanimity of feeling and action, strengthen our principles, and advance the cause of Christ. As you will ase in the course of our report (by statistics, &c.), even now the results from the union movement are very cheering. God has seemed to ap-probate it by blessing some of our churches in a wonderful manner. To him be all the glory 1

sending from the union movement are very cheering. Some and the genry is a sender of the sender of t

ken to unders Want of makin vising of Quan ing Home Mi remarkable in was a precious so much so t morning, and building in the but with the gr preached at the the afternoon t corner were fi searching serm admnistered to

The fourth se Quite a number of the reports transacted at th the churches, to the Yearly Conf Gospel, after ha religious service on the Sabbatl service.

We will now It will not be co fore only glance with the Cape C. Baptist church wick, visited the weeks in conjunc the salvation of good religious p baptism, 3 by lets Death has remove siderable interest

The Port Latou under the pastora some time there 1 was accomplished. seemed to come u the cause of Christ added by baptism interest is manifes of scholars is 50.

We come next to enjoyed any special with regard to it le place. It has the ter. The other half Considerable protra during the year, and which resulted in so est which is so dee letter. Several, we bership is 258. The

time ; others. time of pasto-

ort from the istics from ave not the mouth and istical table

terly Meet-

the Free Banouth County

ise Almighty as you do to arrington, the me faith and ad sympathy. as brethren. use of Christ, Vova Scotia dany had la-

inder God in ain such reogether with unanimity of se of Christ. en now the med to aper. To him

erly Meeting bering. The ecember. At of delegates The most of Quarterly f a code of ttee to draft gent to visit on ; and the

February small. The lew, both by uraging. A everal days,

May. Som ad delegate eport at all, interest ta-

ken to understand duty in that respect, or duty is neglected carelessly, or for want of making some sacrifice. The most important transactions were the re-vising of Quarterly Meeting By-Laws, and the organizing of the Quarterly Meeting Home Mission Society. The religious conference on Saturday was one of remarkable interest. The Spirit of the Lord seemed to have free course. It was a precious meason. A large concourse of people gathered on the Sabbath, was a precious season. A large concourse of people gathered on the Sabbath, so much so that it was thought advisable to divide the congregation in the morning, and held simultaneous services in the meeting house and another building in the richnity. The houses were both filled, not only with people, but with the good spirit of the Lord. Rev. T. O. Brown, of the United States, preached at the meeting house, and Rev. J. I. Porter at the other piace. In the afternoon the people gathered at the meeting house until every nock and corner were filled. Rev. Wm. Downey, of New Brunswick, preached a very searching sormon. After the sermon, the sacrament of the Lord's Supper was administered to a very large number. administered to a very large number. The fourth session was held with the church at Tusket Village, in August.

Quite a number of churches were reported by letter and delegates. The most of the reports were quite encouraging. There was considerable business transacted at this session, some of which was to appoint councils to several of the churches, to try to assist and encourage them ; to appoint the delegates to the Yearly Conference ; and to grant Bro. B. Minard a license to preach the Gospel, after having duly examined him, by the request of the church. The output and a string any examined min, of the request of the contain the religious services were of considerable interest, both on the week' evenings and on the Sabbath. Rev. Wm. Downey, of New Brunswick, rendered efficient

We will now proceed to notice our Churches. Of these there are twenty-one. It will not be convenient to speak very particularly of each one ; we will there-fore only glance at some things of the most importance. We will commence with the Cape Island Church. This is made up of the former F. W. and F. O. Baptist churches on the Island. Since their consolidation it has had the matterial error of Fer F. O. Fetam. C. Baptist churches on the Island. Since their consolidation it has had the pastoral care of Rev. E. G. Eaton, and for a few months the transient labors of Rev. J. C. Brown, of the United States. Rev. Wm. Downey, of New Brunswick, visited the Island last winter, and labored in protracted meetings serveral weeks in conjunction with the pastor. His labors were abundantly bleesed in the salvation of souls. Since that time the church has continued to enjoy good religious prosperity. During the year there have been 157 added by baptism, 3 by letter, and 15 reclaimed, making the present membership 448. Death has removed 6 from them, we trust to join the Church triumphant. Considerable interest is manifested by this church in the Sabbath School. The Port Latour church is enjoying a good degree of religious prosperity, was scomplished. Though the number added was not great, yet the brethren some time there last spring in protracted effort, and much good apprendit weaks avenue of Christ, which effort has not yet been given up. There have been added by patients (in the Sabbath school by this little church. The number of actions is manifested in the Sabbath school by this little church. The number of actions is seen to one up and stand together, and make a renewed effort to hold up the cause of Christ, which effort has not yet been given up. There have been added by patism 6. One has diad. Present number, 60. A good deal of interest is manifested in the Sabbath school by this little church. The number of scholars is 50.

We come next to speak of the 1st Barrington Church. This church has not enjoyed any special general revival for some time, but we think that things with regard to it look a great deal more enouraging since the Anion took place. It has the pastoral care and labour half of the time of Rev. J. I. Por-ter. The other half of the time they have the labours of Bro. Thos. H. Orowell. Considerable protoracted effort has been made within the limits of the church during the year, and public and social meetings have been regularly kept up, which resulted in some good, but still there is not that general religious inter-est which is so desirable. Thirteen have been added by baptism and six by letter. Several, we trus, have gone to the eternal rest. The present mem-bership is 258. The interest in the Sabbath school is good. We come next to speak of the 1st Barrington Church. This church has not

taning sinter annihir of s

The 2d Barrington Church reports to us that they are in good working order. It is under the pastoral care of Rev. J. I. Porter, who labors with them one-fourth of the time, to good acceptance. Elder Swim labors with them also when his health will permit. They have one Union Sabbath-school, with an average number of 55 children; and one not Union, with an average number of 50 scholars. Church membership is 91. One added by baptism.

The Shag Harbour Church reports to us state of religion low; have the la-bors of Bay, W. C. Weston one-fourth of the time. Rev. W. Downey remain-ed there a short time following the May session of the Quarterly Meeting, and labored in protracted effort in company with Elder Weston. Six were added to the church by baptism. Present number 40. This little church has sustained a great loss in the removal by death of Deacon Isaac Niekerson, who has for many years served them. Their loss is his gain. Sabbath-school prospering ; number of scholars, 60.

The Wood's Harbour Church has been in a low state for a good many years; The Wood's Harbour Church has been in a low state for a good many years; has had but little pastoral labor, owing in a great measure to lack of effort on their part. It is a promising field, and should be looked after by us. They report to us that they have at present the labors of Rev. W. C. Weston one-fourth of the time. The Conference meeting is kept up, and also a little pray-er meeting. They have two Sabbath achools, numbering about 30 each. Their membership is 63. Two have died this year. We have no report at hand from the Charleeville Church. Rev. David Oram visits them occasionally. This church is small, but generally sustains some of

the means of grace.

The Pubnico Church is in a low and tried state. No report as to statistics, We have appointed a council to try to help them.

The 1st Argyle Church enjoyed a wonderful outpouring of God's Spirit last winter, under the labour of Rev. Wm. Downey. Eighty two were added to the Church by baptiam ; but owing to their not securing pastoral labour and care, and as the greater portion of the male members go away from home in the sum-

and as ine greater portion of the mate memory go away rout home in the stim-mer season, the Church has again become in a great measure insidire, but we hope that this state of things will not last long. We have no formal report. The 2d Argyle Church reports in a prosperous condition, under the pastoral eare of Rev. E. Sullivan. The Lord bleased his labours last winter in giving them a precious revival of religion, in which forty were added by baptism and one by letter. Present number 115. Sabbath School regularly conducted 1 number of devices 40. number of scholars 40.

a Tusket Church has been for some time in a rather discouraging and trying position. They have had no pastoral labour, and only occasional visits from other Ministers. The last session of the Quarterly Meeting was located there, hoping that it might be the means of helping them; and we think they did take some courage. Some of the brethren remained a few days, and labored for their upbuilding. They have a fine church edifice, and an instrument of music. Church numbers 60; Sabbath school numbering about 30.

The Plymouth Church reports in a rather prosperous condition, under the storal care of Rev. E. Sullivan, who labours with them a fourth of the time. hey number 95; Sabbath school 85. The Little Biver Church school 85.

e Little River Church reports, that they have been blessed under the laars of Rev. E. Sullivan, and are struggling for greater blessings. They mber about 37 members. Sabbath school 50.

The ist known about of members. Should school by: The ist known with the should be about the should be about this year, for some reason. They have been visited two or three times by those who have broken to them the bread of life. Nothing special to report with reference to them, but we hope that the anticipated gathering of your Conference at that place will prove, under God, to be a great blessing to the Church and commu-nity. Their present number is 101; one has died. Sabbath school 66 scholars, 12 teachers.

The 2d Kemptville Church is in a low state, but trying to live. Rev. S. K. Fast labours with them. Number of members 16 ; Sabbath school in a flow-thing state ; number of scholars 30.

The Carleton prosperity. well conducted The Deerfield for some time.

The Beaver ] bour : have have number of scho help them

The Sanford of Quarterly me Elder Sullivan. membership 141

The Session tance of a regul couraged ; but t blessed. Their Minard, of Quee churches, and h retire from publi The Brooklyn

ally. As far as it. No report. it.

You see from lack of pastoral some measure to great measure brethren, shall w Head of the Chu laborers into His

We have elect lowing brethren : McGray, Beverly jamin Banks, Ber man Spinney, Da Samuel Crowell, ( Henry Thurston, of substitution.

The next thing organized May 4th Quarterly Meeting and spread the go

The regular me terly Meeting. organized, we have That was a very in several of the br close there was c amount of about of at Tusket Village. interests of our S different parts of t a success. The ex people. At the cl aid of the Mission

Since th e organi as a missionary. and Second Kempt preached and vis orking order. th them oneth them also nool, with an rage number

have the lawney remain-Meeting, and were added has sustained who has for prospering :

many years; k of effort on by us. They Weston onea little pray-each. Their

David Oram ains some of

to statistics.

i's Spirit last added to the ur and care, e in the sum-ctive, but we nal report. the pastoral ter in giving bapti m ar conducted :

ouraging and asional visits was located e think they , and labored nstrument of 0.

on, under the of the time.

under the lasings. They

his year, for se who have reference rence at th and comm 65 scholars,

Rev. S. K. ol in a flou

The Carleten Church is without pastoral aid, but is enjoying considerable prosperity. A good deal of interest is taken in the Sabbath school, which is well conducted producted production of scholars 30. Church membership 58. The Deserfield Church is in a very low and scattered state. No pastoral care for some time. No report. We have appointed a council to visit them. The Beaver River Church is in a rather sostiered condition. No pastoral la-bour : have had preaching occasionally. They have two good Sabbath schools ; humber of scholars 60. Church membership 115. We have sent a council to height them

The Sanford Church enjoyed a little season of revival soon after the session of Quarterly meeting, which was held with them : some few were baptized by

The Sanford Unurch emproved a little season of revival soon after the season of Quarterly meeting, which was held with them : some few were baptized by Elder Sullivan. They have a capastoral labour, and are now quite low. Church membership 141. They have a Sabbath school, numbering about 60. The Season Hill Church did not report formally. It is without the assi-tance of a regular ministry, and consequently the brethren are somewhat dis-couraged; but they are trying to hold on their way, and we hops they will be bleased. Their church membership is about 35; Sabbath school, 38. Brother Minard, of Queen's County, has visited recently among the three last named ohurches, and helped them considerable; but his health failing him he had to retire from public duties. The Brooklyn Church is without pastoral care, but has preaching occasion-ally. As far as we know there is nothing very discouraging with reference to it. No report. They have a Sabbath school numbering about 85. You see from our report with reference to churches, that there is a great lack of pastoral care and ministerial labor among them. This is owing in great measure to the lack of efficient laborers in the demonination. Dear brethren, shall we not therefore, as we have been admonished by the Great lack of the Church " Pray the Lord of the harrest, that the will send forth laborers into His harrest." We have elected as delegates to represent us in Yearly Conference the faborers into

laborers into His harvest." We have elected as delegates to represent us in Yearly Conference the fol-lowing brethren :--Mathan Snow, J. C. Smith, Martin McGray, Nehemiah McGray, Beverly Smith, Joseph Trefry, Jonathan Smith, J. R. Knowies, Ben-jamin Banks, Benjamin Knowies, Josiah McKomesky, Hallett Goodwin, Whit-samuel Crowell, G. W. Perry, Nathaniel Simms, Dennis Weston, Amo Pitman, Gauber Churchon, M. Jesse Churchill. We have given these basthren the power of substitution.

Henry Thurston, and Jesse Churchill. We have given these backhen the power of substitution. The next thing which we wish to notice is our H. M. Society, which was a constrained May stihl at Shag Harbour. It is called the Yarmouth and Shelburne Quarterly Meeting Home MissionSociety. Its object is to add destitute churches, and spread the grappel in our Quarterly Meeting. The regular meetings are held in connection with each sension of our Quar-terly Meeting Home MissionSociety. The object is to add destitute churches, and spread the grappel in our Quarterly Meeting. The regular meetings are held in connection with each sension of our Quar-terly Meeting. As there have only been two sensions since the Society was result of the brethren warmly advocated the cause of missions; and as it is a social to be brethren warmly advocated the cause of missions; and as it is about one hundred and free dollars. The second meeting was hald interests of our Society, because there ware not so many gathered from the people. At the close about forty-sight dollars ware collected and pledged to add the Mission Fund. Since the creatingtion of the Society we have had fleer. G. E. Baton samployed in the organization of the Society we have had fleer. G. E. Baton samployed and Second Kemptville, Carleton, Deerfield, Publico and First Angyle churches a preached and visited smong them, and labored for their upbuilding. As

Kemptville he baptized a sister, and received her into the church. We trust that his mission was the means of much good, and hope that this is only the beginning of a great deal more we may do through such instrumentality. Bro, Eaton collected among the churches which he visited about forty dollars ha all of the Mission Fund. We have no one at present in the field, as we are hoping after our next Q. Meeting to secure the labors of some one who will efficiently prosecute this great work.

We feel that with the present want of ministers to take the pastoral care of our churches, the H. M. Society is the best machinery we can set in motion for And we hope that our brethren will all assist to oil that matheir upbuilding. And we hope that our brethren will all assist to oil that ma-chinery, keep it in order and in motion by their sympathy, labor, money and prayers, so that great good may be accomplished.

preyent, so that great good may be accomplianed. The officers of this Society for the current year, are as follows :--Rev. W. C. Weston, *President*; Rev. J. I. Porter, *Vice President*; Mr. Ebe-nezer Crowell, *Scoretary* and *Treasurer*. The Committee who, together with the officers, constitute the Board of Directors, is as follows :--Mr. Solomon Kendrick, Mr. David Larkin, and James E. Smith, Esq.

We feel that the mission cause should claim our attention, and while we have been trying to do a litte for our brethren at home, we are not forgetful of the dark and benighted heathen lands.

You are aware that previous to your present organization, the F. W. Bap-tists and the F. O. Papitists of this Province, through their several modes of operation, had been doing something for Foreign Missions.

You are also no doubt aware that owing to the unsettled state of things, and the multiplicity of business since the Union question was agitated until the present, the subject of Foreign Missions received but little attention, and con-

sequently comparatively little has been done in that direction. We think now, however, that the time has come when renewed effort should be put forth to assist in the work. We would therefore respectfully suggest the propriety of your taking the matter into consideration at your coming session, and mature some mode of operation.

There are other subjects to which we might refer, but we fear that our report is already too lengthy. We however have to express our regret that Rev. E. G. Eaton who has so long labored in this Province for the cause of Ohrist, and who has rendered such efficient service in the Union movement, is about to leave us and return to his native land. Especially do we feel to regret this, when we look at the whitening fields and then at the small number of laborers. But if it must needs be, may God bless his labors elsewhere, and make it up to us some other way.

In conclusion, we wish you a pleasant session. We feel that important matters will be brought before you and disposed of, which will shape in a great mesure our denominational destiny, and tell upon the cause of Christ. We therefore pray that the Master of assemblies may be present with you to give direction and aid in all of your deliberations and doings, so that all may result in the glory of God. THEO. H. CROWELL, in the glory of God.

Barrington, September, 1867.

Q. MEETING CLERK.

Resolved, That we continue the correspondence with those Yearly Meetings represented in this Conference.

Resolved, That Rev. C. Knowles be corresponding delegate to Maine Western and Maine Central Yearly Meetings.

Resolved, That Rev. D. Oram be corresponding delegate to New Brunswick F. C. Baptist General Conference.

Resolved, That the delegates have the power of substitution. Resolved, That the Treasurer's report be received.

Resolved. That the report of Committee appointed to nominate officers for the Foreign Mission Society be adopted. (See Appendix " List of Officers.")

Resolved, ! T. H. Crowell REPORT .- YOU dained as soon a

Resolved, 7 Constitution ceived, and la Resolved, T

Prayer by ]

Prayer by I Resolved, T Resolved, T N. McGray be ordination of Resolved. T up for adoption

Resolved, Th Appendix.) The report o

Resolved, Th adopted.

REPORT .--- Your bath is one of the good of the for the good of th and sanctifying or labor, and for the needful in order to is absolutely neces world emphaticall by the neglect of holy, God set apar come degraded and surrounded by the from every stand p day of rest and de its hours as God h vate worship, readi exercise that shall employment for the

In conclusion we and manfully fight Lord's day holy, th pared for the people

Resolved, Tha ordination be ad REFORT.-Your O of Bro. T. H. Crowe Eaton, and E. Sulliv We trust is only the tality. Bro. collars in aid e are hoping ill efficiently

toral care of n motion for oil that ma-, money and

t; Mr. Ebeogether with Mr. Solomon

nd while we t forgetful of

F. W. Bapal modes of

f things, and ted until the on, and con-

effort should y suggest the ming session,

at our report et that Rev. se of Ohrist, ent, is about o regret this, r of laborers. make it up to

portant matpe in a great Christ. We h you to give all may result OWELL, ING CLERK.

with those

delegate to

ate to New

titution.

o nominate See AppenResolved, That the report of Council on the ordination of Bro. T. H. Crowell be received and adopted.

REFORT.—Your Committee recommend that Bro. Theo. H. Growell be ordained as soon as convenient. C. KNOWLES, Chairman.

Resolved, That the report of Committee appointed to frame a Constitution for the government of the Education Society be received, and laid over till to-morrow morning.

Resolved, That we adjourn until to-morrow morning, 8 o'clock. Prayer by Rev. D. Oram.

SATURDAT MORNING, 9 o'clock.

Prayer by Rev. T. C. Brown.

Resolved, That Elder Oram be Assistant Moderator.

Resolved, That Elder G. E. Eaton, Brethren Joseph Trefty and N. McGray be a Committee to nominate a Council to attend to the ordination of Bro. T. H. Crowell.

Resolved, That the Constitution of Education Society be taken up for adoption.

Resolved, That the Constitution be adopted as a whole. (See Appendix.)

The report on the Sabbath was called for and read. Resolved, That the report of the Committee on the Sabbath be adopted.

exercise that shall draw us near to see the set of the second sec

Resolved, That the report of Committee to nominate Conneil on ordination be adopted.

REFORT. — Your Committee to nominate a Council to attend to the ordination of Bro. T. H. Crowell, recommend that Hevs. C. O. Libby, G. Enowles, E. G. Eaton, and E. Sullivan be the Council.

Resolved, That the report on Sabbath schools be received and adopted. , balmabr

REPORT -Your Committee on Sabbath schools, beg leave to submit the following report :-

We find that in the Yarmouth and Shelburne Quarterly Meeting there is con-We mad that in the 1 armoun and one-norme quartery mesung uner is con-siderable general interest taken in Sabbath schools; but yet we think there is not all that deep interest that there should be, especially in some of the churches. With regard to the interest in the Harmony Quarterly Meeting, we can say bat little, as there is no report at hand. We believe, however, that some of the churches are doing what they can. Your Committee believe it to be advantageous to every church in the de-

Your committee cenere it to be auxingeous to every current and the nomination to have a Sabbath school connected with it, whether that school be made up of children, the middle aged or the aged. We believe that too much labor cannot be spent in Sabbath schools, as we believe them to be the nursery of the church. Your Committee would recommend that the members of the Conference encourage the establishment of Sabbath schools, and do what they can to increase the usefulness of those in operation. T. H. CROWELL, Chairman.

Resolved, That the report on Temperance be received and adopted. "thisoil doilanbil to aoits

REPORT .- The Committee on Temperanee beg leave to present the following

report : 1st, Resolved. That we still adhere to the principles of total abstinence from all intoxicating liquors.

2d. That we deem it imperative on christians to carry their temperance prines into all departments of life, individual, civil, and religious.

8d. That as the history of past years show temperance to be the handmaid of religion, the prosperity of God's cause demands direct and strenuous efforts to carry forward this cause. D. ORAM, *Chairman*.

Resolved, That the delegate to the Maine Western and Maine Central Yearly Meetings receive from this Conference Fund thirty dollars, and the delegate to the New Brunswick General Conference receive twenty dollars, to pay expenses.

Resolved, That J. I. Porter and T. H. Crowell prepare the Minutes for the press.

Resolved. That the Committee appointed to prepare the Minutes for the press &c., be paid ten dollars from this Conference fund.

Resolved, That the senior deacon of each church connected with this Conference, be requested to collect from each member of the church to which he belongs, the Conference funds, and forward mem, with a list of the names of contributors, to the Treasurer of the General Conference. These lists are to be published in the minutes of Conference.

"Notice is hereby given of the intended alteration of Article Three of the Constitution of this Conference, which has reference to the choosing of Mode-rater, making is read " chosen each session," instead of "annually." T. H. CROWELL.

Resolved. That there be one thousand copies of the Minutes printed.

solved, That Elders T. C. Brown, C. Knowles, and Bro. Asa McGray, be a Committee to nominate officers for Educational Society.

Resolved. ! brethren in l the Foreign : advise the En to do so.

Resolved. ] nate officers pendix "Con

Resolved. T place for the ference.

Resolved. T Conference for business of the

Resolved, T and visiting | during this ses Resolved, TI

Rev. E. G. 1 the brethren in very feeling rea perity of God's business session

The religious

Thursday ev number of the Lord ; and the

Saturday afte present at this many gave hear people. The a desired to do so

Saturday even ligencer, preache terial brethren assembly.

Sabbath morn The Lord's pre Rev. C. O. Libby was preached on Crowell, who, aff of the Christian following :---Ordi Rev. C. Knowles. diction by Rev. ]

#### eccived and

#### mit the follow-

think there is not some of the y Meeting, we however, that

rch in the dethat school be that too much be the nursery embers of the i do what they

Chairman.

eceived and

t the following

bstinence from

mperance prin-

the handmaid renuous 'efforts *Chairman*.

Fund thirty eral Confer-

prepare the

the Minutes ence fund. nnected with ember of the and forward Treasurer of ished in the

Three of the bosing of Modeally." CROWELL.

the Minutes

Educational

Resolved, That this Conference believes it right to aid our brethren in New Branswick in the support of their missionary in the Foreign field, so long as such help is necessary; and hereby advise the Executive Committee of our Foreign Missionary Society to do so.

Resolved, That the report of the Committee sppointed to nominate officers for the Educational Society, be adopted. (See Appendix "Constitution Educational Society.")

Resolved, That we give a vote of thanks to the friends in this place for the manner in which they have entertained this Conference.

Resolved, That we accord a vote of thanks to the officers of this Conference for the able manner in which they have conducted the business of the session.

Resolved, That we accord a vote of thanks to the corresponding and visiting brethren for the help which they have afforded us during this session.

Resolved, That we adjourn without date.

Rev. E. G. Eaton, Moderator, being about to take his leave of the brethren in this Province and remove to the States, made some very feeling remarks; and then prayed very fervently for the prosperity of God's cause amongst us. This closed a very pleasant business session of our Conference.

The religious meetings were as follows :----

Thursday evening, Rev. W. M. Knollin preached. Quite a number of the brethren spoke of the love and goodness of the Lord ; and the evening was truly a time of refreshing.

Saturday afternoon, 2 o'clock, met for social conference. Those present at this meeting must have felt it good to be there. Very many gave hearty expression to the love they felt for God and his people. The afternoon was much too short for all to speak who desired to do so. Surely the presence of the Lord was with us.

Saturday evening Bro. J. McLeod, editor of the *Religious Intel*ligencer, preached; subject—Romans i. 16. Several of the ministerial brethren followed. A deep solemnity pervaded the whole assembly.

Sabbath morning, 9 o'clock, many of the people met for prayer. The Lord's presence was enjoyed by his people. 104 o'clock Rev. C. O. Libby preached; subject-Paalm lxi. 2. This sermon was preached on the occasion of the ordination of Brother T. H. Crowell, who, after the close of which, was set apart to the work of the Christian ministry by the imposition of hands, in the order following :--Ordination prayer by Rev. E. Sullivan; charge by Rev. C. Knowles; hand of fellowshup by Rev. E. G. Eston; benediction by Rev. Theo. H. Crowell.

Three o'clock, P. M., Rev. G. A. Hartley preached ; subject-Col. iii. 7. After the close of this meeting the Lord's Supper was administered to a large number of God's people. This was a communion season long to be remembered. For nearly two hours the children of the Lord rejoiced in "God the rock of their salvation."

At 7 o'clock met according to appointment. This was a social meeting, in which ministers and lay brethren and sisters took part. It was a good meeting. This afternoon and evening many of the christian friends took the parting hand perhaps never to meet again on earth, on another so blessed an occasion. These partings lead us to contemplate that meeting which knows no parting.

sill to stability off at shindt to star a b J. L. PORTER, Clerk. Ignifurenced at the able manner in which they have conducted the business of the session,

Resolved. That we accord a vote of thanks to the corresponding an labraits organized the belo which they have been afforded us

Sheedeed. Then we adjourn thishoul date.

TR Free Baptist (

By amount of co

"

44 .. receiv

-Puellob The minner

te a las a

n 1

a 6 1

sel Heda

4

anallow not mit

-

" "

\*\*

. from 44

the collection

alogga .sauit

To amount paid ]

" " Rev. J. L EODIA BR

The Develoy Tot

add to already a

re and - and a star sector

toriotics) B

1.775 有理型的 It will be see paid in their Co

ton during

Co . colle

14

"

" se institut .

a

4601 -

mal se

amount colle

Hew E. G. Rateur, Moderator, being about to take his leave of the brothrea is this Province and remove to the States, made some very relevant replaces ; and then grayed very for antly for the prosturnity of God's cause, amongst us. This closed a very pleasant ons hors session of acr Conference.

The religious meetings were as follows :---

Thursday econistic Rev. W. M. Buollin preached. Quite a number strain brethren spoke of the love and goodness of the fault and the creating was truly a time of refreshing.

Salardar alternoon, 2 o'clock, met for social conference. Those present at this presing must have felt it good to be theirs. Very many wave beauty expression to the love they folt for God and his people. The glamoon was much too short for all to shoul who desired to do so. Surely the presence of the Lord was with us.

Caturday evening Bro. J. McLeod, editor of the Religious Intels. interest, presented ; subject -- Iromans i. 16. Several of the mistregal brechren followed. A deep solomaily pervaled the while A. There shale

Sabhathrmerning, 9 o'clock, many of the people mot for prover; ine Lord's presence was enjoyed by his speeple. 101 o'clock areas. C. Lobby preached; subject-Twinnist. 2. This seruption was presaded on the occasion of the ordination of Brother T. H. then all where effective close of which, was set apart to the work of the Constant ministry by the imposition of hands, in the order, distance :-- Ordination prover by Ref. R. Sullivant charge bet Search Knowles; hand of fellowship by Rev. R. G. Laton ; hence viction by R . Theo, F. Crowell. l : subject-Supper was s was a comwo hours the ir salvation.' was a social

ers took part. many of the ver to meet hese partings parting.

ER. Clerk.

business of th

44

DIS NOTS REAL

The religion Vanoanti Do number we the 18 bra r hvert

Salurday at pictors at this ad a tax years people. The desired to do i

Saturday on Superation, Toreac dordiand farms 

Convide Conce The Lord's p Rowley O. D. a bodonary well and which would Cisartes) offr 10-O---- primereiled Brack Caroni

# when in which in helping wears include and investment wells. Treasand of the Contest of the Contest of the Contest of the State of the contest of the contes to bus so as to bard said that had be done to she whenter of evaluation We cannot sufficie the manager if contributions to this function of the second of the APPENDIX. TREASURER'S ACCOUNT. TEACO Free Baptist Conference in Account with T. W. Wilson, Treasurer, By amount of collection taken in aid of Conference Fund at Barrington during Convention, ..... \$8 10 " amount collected in First Barrington Church, ..... \$8 10 " " " Showd " " 175 \$8 10 -Second 5 854 .. received from the Treasurer of the late F. C. Baptist Generation rom the Treasurer of the late F. O. Baptist 22 06 Genference, Second view Generation of the First Argyle Church, 2 07 Generation of the Second view 1 08 Generation of the Second Kamptville " 1 08 Generation of the Second Kamptville "</ Conference, Matthew Roberts, Matthew Roberts, the collection on Sabbath at Kempiville, 18 de sd ileda rosil

church to which he belongs are collected and forwarded to the Treasurer of the Conference (T. W. Wilson, Barrington), with a list of the names of contribu-tors, so as to have said lists printed in the minutes of Conference.

We cannot publish the names of contributors to this fund this year, as with a few exceptions they have not been forwarded to us.

# CONSTITUTION OF FOREIGN MISSION SOCIETY.

#### L-NAME.

1 .- This Society shall be called the NOVA SCOTIA FREE BAFTIST FOREIGN MISSION SOCIETY.

II .--- OBJECT OF THE SOCIETY.

2 .- The object of the Society is to diffuse Obristian knowledge among the destitute in heathen countries.

### . III .- MEMBERS OF THE SOCIETY.

8.-Persons of good moral character may become members of the Society on b.--L'ersons or good moral character may become memorer or the society of the following terms :-- A male may become an annual member by paying into the Treasury yearly the sum of the olders ignus by paying twenty dollars, may become a life member. A female may become an annual member by paying into the Treasury yearly one dollar; and a life member by paying ten dollars.

### IV .--- OFFICERS OF THE SOCIETY.

4.—The officers of the Society shall be a President, three Vice-Presidents, a Treasurer, an Auditor, a Corresponding Secretary, a Recording Secretary, and a Excertive Committee of elseen, who shall be appointed annually by the Bodiety. The foregoing officers shall hold their respective offices until others

8.-It shall be the duty of the President, and in his absence, of one of the ice-it and the fuel of the President, and in me measured, it one of the lice-Presidents, to preside at each meeting of the Society, and to perform such field acts at any time as the Society shall direct by its rules and votes. In a absence of the President and all the Vice-Presidents, the didest member resemptiaball call the meeting to order; after which a presiding officer shall be are cho

present shall call the meeting to order; after which a presiding officer shall be hoven for the consuitor Committee shall form its own rules and regulations, appoint is own meetings, fill may vacancy that may occur in its own meetings, or mong the other officers of the Society during the year, and call special meet-ing own here, in their opinion, the interests of the cause requires if. I think the meetings of the corresponding Secretary and Treasurer, and regulations as the interests of the cause requires if. I think the requires as the interests of the enterprise may requires, and main an and regulates as the interests of the enterprise may requires, and main an another as four synches as the interests of the enterprise may requires, and make an annual report of its doings to the Society. The Leenk shall be the Recording Bestream of the Gommittee to the officer. The Clerk shall here a fill officer of the members of the Gommittee, and sign all their official scie. The records of the meetings of the Committee, and sign all their official scie. The records of the members of the Godesty, and also the Treasurer, if he will consert to five of the members of the Boolety, and also the Treasurer, if he will consert to five of the members of the Boolety, and also the Treasurer will consert to be officer. The Treasure shall be members of the Excendite Committee. There of the members of the Boolety and also the Treasurer will consert to be on members of the Boolety and also the Treasurer will consert to be on members of the Boolety and also the Treasurer will consert to be on members of the Boolety and also the Treasurer will consert to be on members of the Boolety and also the treasure will consert to be on members of the Boolety in the safes of the Turne belonging to the Boolety. The two members of the Boolety in the safes and most productive form which they have been derived, and the purposes for which they have been given. He shall the state the funds of the Boolety in the safes or changed by him without the one memb

deeds in the n Committee.

8.-The Aud books at least o accurately cast, and accounted f shall give his c in the Treasure to be by him en

9.-It shall b mit all commun the Society, to answer those w ject demands, thereto, and pr of the Society, Committee, if t

10.-The Rec of the Society, records of each immediately aft

11.-This Sc Free Baptist Co Executive Com necessary busin responding Sec directed either nine members Society ; but a

12.-A Com in such manner duty it shall be

18.-Any Mi or oftener into Foreign Mission

14.-No alter shall be made Free Baptist de members prese shall have been

15.—Money the missionaries tist Foreign Mi may be designed port of such a Executive Com the Parent See rer of the contribu-

ar, as with

### CIETY.

T FOREIGN

among the

e Society on paying into dollars, may ten dollars.

Presidents, cretary, and ually by the until others

of one of the perform such nd votes. In officer shall be

members, or -dial I sp It shall de Freasurer, and hall, as soon a hall, as soon i No da ding Secretaria Frecord of the records of th tiety. The tw nsent to be one se. Five of its

to the Society, which they have n. He shall in e forma; but h it the c nout the cond

19

deeds in the name of the Society, and under the direction of the Executive Committee

8.-The Auditor shall examine carefully and thoroughly the Treasurer's books at least once a year; and if he shall find the accounts correctly kept and accurately cast, the payments well vouched, the balance satisfactorily stated and accounted for, and the evidence of the property shall be duly exhibited, he shall give his certificate accordingly, which certificate he shall enter at large in the Treasurer's books, and give a duplicate of it to the Recording Secretary, to be by him entered upon his book of record

9.-It shall be the duty of the Corresponding Secretary to prepare and trans-9. - It such be used any of the corresponding occurs of b point and annual mit all communications that may be necessary to promote the base interests of the Society, to receive all such as are made through him to the Society, and to answer those which, in his opinion, require it; and when the nature of the subject demands, he shall ask advice of the Executive Committee in relation sets centratues, no summany any average of the Executive committee in relation thereto, and proceed as they may direct. He shall prepare the annual report of the Society, which report shall be heard and accepted by the Executive Committee, if they desire to do so, before it shall be presented to the Society. 10.—The Recoording Secretary shall keep iccurate minutes of the Proceedings of the Society, which he shall entire in a book of records, and certify that the records of each meeting are true. If necessary, he shall be sworn into office invendited after him to be a state of the society.

immediately after his election or re-election.

#### V .- THE ANNUAL MEETING.

11.—This Society shall hold its annual meeting during the session of the Free Baptist Conforence, to elect officers, to hear the reports of the Treasurer, Executive Committee, and Corresponding Beeretary, and to transast all other necessary business of the Bociety. On presenting the annual report, the Cor-responding Scoretary shall read the whole of it or an abstract, as he shall be directed either by the Executive Committee or the Society. A quorum of nine members shall be requisite to transact business at all meetings of the Society; but a less number may call to order and adjourn.

#### VI.---MANNER OF CHOOSING THE OFFICERS.

12.-A Committee shall be appointed at each annual meeting of the Society, in such manner and consisting of such members as may be thought best, whose duty it shall be to nominate the officers for the ensuing year.

#### VII.-AUXILIARY SOCIETIES.

18 .- Any Missionary Society may become auxiliary to this by paying annually or oftener into the Treasury of this Society, such same, as they may colless for Foreign Missionary purposes. Adjunction of other and other in block and using

### VIII. -AMENDMENTS OF THE CONSTITUTION. . Tist ,81 reduct

VIII.—AMERIAMENTS OF THE CONSTITUTION. <sup>1</sup> If a reduct 14.—No alternation of the Committion Laws and Regulations of the Bodery shall be made except on recommendation of the Excentise Committee of the free Baptist denomination in New Scotts, and by vote of two-thirds of the members present at any annual matching, or index the proposed allocation shall have been submitted to the Bodery in writing at a previous mesting members present at any annual matching, or index the proposed allocation shall have been submitted to the Bodery in writing at a previous mesting <u>IX.—Durcentrees of Funk</u>. 15.—Money received by this Scolety shall be appropriated for the group will be the missionaries, stations, schools, and matry preachers of the Free Will Bee this Foreign Mission Scottery, to be applied by thus Bodery, to each mission may be designated by the Executive Committee of the Scotexy, and to the up port of such missionaries and native preachers, as may be aelected by the Executive Committee from among the appointed missionaries and by the appoint of the Parent Segiety.

State of State

## MINUTES OF THE

20 allocher and he as in the Sanker and an end at the state of the state of toria of all ally not do low the topole charge line dist. edl-

FIRST ANNUAL MEETING OF THE NOVA SCOTIA F. BAPTIST FOREIGN MISSION SOCIETY.

this all communications that may be necessary in promose the best interesting ot has statio OFFICERS OF THE SOCIETY. a nit chronoule that autolar ai anti morger lutanar adt ernaterig tiele at Breitbent. Theorem I and a subject that a **Bristent**, which as a second and a subject that a subject of the " S. K., WEST.

Barriel in volute limber

REV. THEO. H. CROWELL, Corresponding Secretary. Mn. GEO. W. PERRY, Recording Secretary. ASA MoGRAY, Esc., Treasurer. Told add JAMES E. SMITH, Esq., Auditor. of finis of a portion to him of the other finis very stated and and be REV. THEO. H. CROWELL, B. B. WOODWORTH, Esc., MR. G. W. PERRY, MR. JAMES ROBBINS,

ASA MORAY, EEG. J. H. HAMILTÓN, ESG. ELDRED CAHOON, Ese., REV. DAVID ORAM, Rev. S. K. WEST.

instants making vel -ids or a

Section Ist water of the

The first annual meeting of the Nova Scotis Free Baptist Foreign Mission lociety was held in the Kemptville Meeting-house on Tuesday evening, Sep-18, 1867. "Rorrstit State of Thirty

18, 1667. Sent in the Chain', Meeting, opened by singing and prayer. Prevident made a few appropriate remaining stating the origin of the and the object of the meeting. After which he incroduced the Rev. http: of the United States, who delivered an able and interesting di-states abject of missions. He was followed by many of the initiatival brothesen, who gave accollent addresses, adding greatly to the interest desing. After which a collection was taken in aid, of the funds of the amounting to \$13.90. Subscription impers were also circulated, when are paid \$15.00, and plenged \$31.45. Beceived from the Stabisth commention with the States Two Boutes Church, Berngton, \$5.50, the amount in Transmry of Boulety, October 1st, \$26.20; Thirnds who have pledged amounts to, the funds of the Society, will convert the same to the Transvers as boon as convenient.

#### CONSTIT

This Soc SOCIETY.

The object sistance of ministry.

Any me member of ber; any fe ing five dol

The offic and Treasur shall form a Society.

Any male

SEC. 1.over all me SEG. 2 .-keeping a c ings and do

SEC. 8.the Society order of the SEC. 4 .--

report, givin and lay said

SEC. 5.tance course of s as they may no power to bona fide p

The annu Free Baptis President a and Commi before the members of

#### CONSTITUTION OF THE NOVA SCOTIA FREE BAPTIST EDUCATION SOCIETY.

#### ARTICLE I.-NAME.

ST

sale

165

sion Sep-

the

Rev. diserial erest the when bath

30**4**,

will

This Society shall be known as the Nova Scotia Free Baptist Education Society.

#### ARTICLE II.-OBJECT.

The object of this Society shall be to encourage and raise funds for the assistance of young men who may wish to study preparatory to entering the ministry.

#### ARTICLE III.-MEMBERSHIP.

Any member paying one dollar annually to the Society shall be a regular member of the same, and by paying ten dollars at one time shall be a life member; any female, by paying fifty cents, shall be a regular member, and by paying five dollars at one time shall be a life member.

#### ARTICLE IV .--- OFFICERS.

The officers of this Society shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer, and a Committee of fire; -----aid Committee with all the officers shall form a Board, who shall have the management of all the business of the Society.

#### ARTICLE VI.-ELIGIBILITY TO OFFICE.

Any male member of this Society shall be eligible to office in the Society.

#### ARTICLE VI .- DUTIES OF OFFICERS AND BOARD.

SEC. 1.—The President, or in his absence, the Vice-President, shall preside ever all meetings held by this Society.

SEG. 2.-The Secretary shall conduct all the correspondence of this Society, keeping a copy of the same ; he shall also keep a correct record of the meetings and doings of the Society.

SRC. 3.—The Treasurer shall receive and dispense all monies belonging to the Society ; no money to be paid out by the Treasurer except by the written order of the Secretary, endorsed by the President of the Society.

SEC. 4.—The Secretary and Treasurer shall each prepare annually a written report, giving a full statement of all the business transacted in his department, and lay said report before the Society at each annual meeting.

SEC. 5.—The Board shall hear and advise with any young men who may wish assistance from the Society as to the best place for them to study, and the course of study to be pursued; they shall disburse the funds of the Society as they may think will best premote the object of the Society, but shall have no power to contract a debt beyond the amount in the Treasurer's hands, or bona fide pledges made.

#### ARTICLE VIL-TIME OF MEETING.

The annual meeting of this Society shall be held during the sitting of the Free Baptist Conference. Special meetings may be held at any time when the President and two of the Committee shall think it meessary. All the officers and Committee shall be notified in writing by the Scoretary at least two weeks before the time of meeting, when a special meeting shall be called. Four members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of Manness. A less number may adjourn.

# ARTICLE VIIL-AMENDMENTS OF CONSTITUTION.

This Constitution, may be altered or amended at any annual meeting of the ociety by a majority vote of the inembers of the Society present, twelve mem-me constituting a quorum. No alterediens can be made indeer bolies thereit be given in writing and recorded one yes

#### ANTICLES

This Society shall be known as this retrieved turned and security ( ANDERY'S.

# OFFICERS OF EDUCATION SOCIETY.

The abject of this Sockets and as as ensurings and eline funde for the net REV. J. L. PORTER.

### ARTICLEATEL

and weather Aur thember paving one do united with which it a of field send at T. W. WILSON, Esc. (1 has save ad) to reduce the Society shall be a resulter beet may femal, by paying the Bay, THEO. H. OROWELL, Secretary, in pallaberth and store a t how you have ratinger a set of

## T. W. WILSON, Eso., Treasurer.

This officers of this Recise shall be a Dependent, Transforder and the set for an internation of the set of th ISRAEL WILSON, Esq. ELDRED CAHOON, Esq. and Inte

# SYLVANUS WHITNEY, Esc.

JAS C. SMITH, Iso., ASA MOGRAY, Empaties to redimont sham the Charle of million of the territ

# ARTEVAL VIL-DUNING OF GROUPS AND BRIDE

Pare 1.— The Presidence on in his arbamene, the Wand Fredeling Well a over all movings held by the Stating

Brie 2-The Remutery shall compare all the conjection of this in heading it opps of the sense is he and it was they it research accorded.

ind solonger Tarend with here evide their require and there is with I et appear a second at the list of the transmission of a second at the second at the

reflection graphs again light and so of the restricted off - to and toport giving a top partoners of its in the average subscripting of mit a line dates in a second of the second second bins and bas terment spinster and a second filling word finite franct out --- a land Another the state of the second se

### they apply the

The annual residue is string and the second large of the second la a wain and alout a